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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of
State Insurance Fund Corporation:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of State Insurance Fund Corporation (the
Corporation), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2013, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Controller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Corporation, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters — Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 3 thru 11, the Ten-Year Claims Development Information and the Schedules
of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions for Pension Costs and Postemployment Benefits Other than
Pensions on pages 70 thru 72, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 20, 2014,
on our consideration of the Corporation's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.
bypimfc

San Juan, Puerto Rico
February 20, 2014

Stamp number E89535 of the Puerto Rico Society
of CPA’s was affixed to the record copy of this report.

Member firm of CPA Associates International with offices in principal cities worldwide
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CFI STATE INSURANCE FUND CORPORATION
SE MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED) AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

INTRODUCTION

The State Insurance Fund Corporation (the Corporation) is a component unit of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Commonwealth) created by Law No. 45 of April 18, 1935,
as amended, known as the Workmen Compensation Insurance Act (the Act). Under the
provisions of the Act, the Corporation is the exclusive provider of insurance coverage for work
related accidents, deaths, and illnesses suffered by workers in Puerto Rico. On October 29, 1992,
the Act was amended by Law No. 83 to convert the agency into a governmental corporation and

to establish the functions and responsibilities of the Board of Directors, the Administrator and
the Industrial Medical Advisory Board.

The Act provides that the Corporation’s administrative expenses shall not exceed 22% of the
total insurance premiums collected during the previous fiscal year. Administrative expenses
exclude depreciation and amortization expense, provision for (recoveries of) uncollectible
accounts, interest expense and investment managers’ fees. The Corporation complied with this
requirement of the Act for the year ended June 30, 2013.

This section presents a narrative overview and analysis of the financial performance of the
Corporation as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013. The information presented here should
be read in conjuction with the basic financial statements, including the notes thereto.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e Decrease in total assets of $24.7 million in 2013 when compared to 2012.

e Decrease in total liabilities of $30.5 million in 2013 when compared to 2012.

e Increase in operating revenues of $14.8 million in 2013 when compared to 2012. The
historical trend of premium collections for the last years, presents a significant reduction
of revenues, which are projected to 2013-14 fall by -1.2%. As a result of the downturn in
the Puerto Rico economy it is expected that this adverse trend will continue in the
upcoming years, therefore, resulting in a negative impact in the Corporation cash flow
necessary to comply with all its obligations.

o Decrease in operating expenses of $64.8 million in 2013 when compared to 2012.

e At June 30, 2013 the Corporation unfunded liabilities in connection with the Pension and
Other Postemployment plans amounted to $29,634,360 and $38,363,662, respectively.
Currently, the Corporation does not have specific assets set aside to cover these
liabilities.

e The Corporation is evaluating the impact of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 (GAS 68),
which is effective for periods beginning after June 15,2014. GAS 68 establishes among
other things that employers participating in defined benefit cost-sharing multiple
employer pension plans will be required to recognize their proportionate share of the
“collective” net pension liability on the face of their statements of net assets. The

implementation of this pronouncement may adversely impact the Corporation’s net
position.



CF! STATE INSURANCE FUND CORPORATION
SE MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED) AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

e The Corporation had operating income of $24 million in 2013 as compared to an
operating loss of $55.7 million in 2012.

e The actuarially determined expense of compensation benefits, medical benefits and
benefit adjustment expenses went from a provision of $23.8 million in 2012 to a credit of
$6.5 million in 2013.

o Transfers to other governmental agencies amounted to $67.8 million in 2013 and $51.3
million in 2012. It is expected that for fiscal year 2014 these transfers will be
approximately $107.8. These transfers of funds have an adverse impact in the
Corporation resources in order to comply with its obligations and social responsibility.

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is required supplementary information to the basic financial
statements and is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements of the
Corporation. The Corporation is a self-supporting entity and follows the enterprise fund
reporting; accordingly, the financial statements are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Enterprise fund statements offer short
and long term financial information about the activities and operations of the Corporation.

The basic financial statements include the following: (1) Statement of Net Position, (2)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, (3) Statement of Cash Flows,
and (4) Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. The Corporation also includes additional
information to supplement the basic financial statements.

The statement of net position provides information on the Corporation’s assets, deferred
outflows of resources (if any), liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources (if any) with the
residual of all elements presented in a financial position statement reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the Corporation is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information on how the
Corporation’s net position changed during the reporting period. Changes in net position are

reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows.

The statement of cash flows shows changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from
operating, non—capital and capital financing and investing activities, which include cash receipts
and cash disbursements information.

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential for a
full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.
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S MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED) AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The required supplementary information consists of three schedules concerning the following:
(1) the ten—year claims development information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk
Financing and Related Insurance Issues, as amended, (2) the supplementary information of the
Corporation’s Pension Costs as required by GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions
by State and Local Governmental Employers and, (3) the supplementary information of the
Corporation’s Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions Program as required by the GASB

Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment
Benefits other than Pensions.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following is the condensed financial position of the Corporation as of June 30, 2013 and
2012:

Condensed Statement of Net Position

June 30, Change
2013 2012 Amount Percent
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 161,162,902 159,248,401 1,914,501 1.20%
Accounts receivable — net 84,028,502 81,216,370 2,812,132 3.46%
Investments 1,509,755,383 1,536,840,586 (27,085,203) -1.76%
Capital assets — net 103,561,862 106,212,872 (2,651,010) -2.50%
Other assets 3,609,385 3,353,991 255,394 7.61%
Total assets $ 1,862,118,034 1,886,872,220 (24,754,186) -1.31%
Liabilities:
Current liabilities $ 503,715,024 506,853,255 (3,138,231) -0.62%
Non-current liabilities 1,021,302,038 1,048,653,660 (27,351,622) -2.61%
Total liabilities 1,525,017,062 1,555,506,915 (30,489,853) -1.96%
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 40,427,830 37,965,293 2,462,537 6.49%
Restricted 72,600,000 72,600,000 - 0.00%
Unrestricted 224,073,142 220,800,012 3,273,130 1.48%
Total net position 337,100,972 331,365,305 5,735,667 1.73%
Total liabilities and net position $ 1,862,118,034 1,886,872,220 (24,754,186) -1.31%

* The Corporation’s total assets decreased by $24.7 million in 2013 (or 1.31%)

Decrease in total assets of the Corporation to $1,862 million in 2013 from $1,887 million in 2012
is mainly due to a decrease in the Corporation’s investments of approximately $27 million.
Such decrease is directly related to the increase in cash and cash equivalents and is mainly
attributed to a decrease in the investments portfolio resulting from retirements of approximately
$69 million made during the year from investments (principally stocks) to the operational cash
for payment of the Corporation’s debt (interest only) and to cover other cash needs of the

Corporation. The Corporation also recorded an impairment loss on capital asset of $2.8 million
in 2013, thus decreasing capital assets-net.
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SE MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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* The Corporation’s total liabilities decreased by $30.5 million in 2013 (or 1.96%)

Decrease in total liabilities to $1,525 million in 2013 from $1,555 million in 2012 is mainly due
to payments on other notes payable, decrease in the account payable to investment manager for
trades not settled at year end, decrease in the accrual for reimbursement of premiums and a
decrease in pension and postemployment benefits other than pension obligations, among other. It
should be noted that the total liability for incurred but unpaid compensation and medical
benefits, including benefit adjustment expenses, remained on line with prior year, although there
were significant fluctuations in the present value of estimated outstanding losses by individual
benefit type. The liability for incurred but unpaid compensation and medical benefits,
experienced decreases in temporary total outstanding losses and in returned premiums, which
were nearly offset by an increase in permanent total losses.

The liability for incurred but unpaid compensation and medical benefits, includes a reserve for
both reported and unreported insured events (compensation and medical benefits), which
includes an estimation of future payments and related adjustment expenses. It is developed by an
independent actuary from historical benefit expenses and/or payments gathered by the
Corporation. The liability for compensation and medical benefits is based on historical claims
experience data, assumptions, and projections of future events, including the frequency, severity
and persistency of the claims, as well as the inflationary trends. The accrual for reimbursement
of premiums represents an estimate actuarially determined as a result of the settlement of
premiums under the policies. The assumptions used in estimating and establishing these
liabilities are reviewed annually based on current circumstances and trends.

The actuarially determined accrual for reimbursement of premiums decreased from $118.6
million as of June 30, 2012 to $113.8 million as of June 30, 2013, as a result of a trend of
decreased returned premiums experienced by the Corporation. For the year ended June 30, 2013,
incurred compensation and medical benefits amounted to $489.7 million, meanwhile,

compensation and medical benefits payments amounted to $528.1 million for the year ended
June 30, 2012,

The pension and postemployment benefits other than pension obligations experienced a decrease
of $6.8 million as compared to obligations as of June 30, 2012, mainly as a result of changes
established by Act No. 3 of 2013, which represents a comprehensive reform of the Employee
Retirement System of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (ERS). The pension obligation
decreased from $10.2 million as of June 30, 2012 to $7.1 million as of June 30, 2013 and the
postemployment benefits other than pension obligation decreased from $9.8 million as of June
30, 2012 to $6.1 million as of June 30, 2013. Contributions made during the fiscal year were
significantly higher than in prior year.

* The Corporation’s net position increased by $5.7 million in 2013 (or 1.73%)
As of June 30, 2013, the Corporation had $224.1 million in unrestricted component of net

position, $72.6 million in restricted component of net position and $40.4 million invested in
capital assets-net of related debt, for a total net position of $337.1 million. In fiscal year 2013,
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net position increased by $5.7 million or 1.73%, from $331.3 million as of June 30, 2012, due to
an increase in operating revenues of 2.33%, a decrease in operating expenses of 9.29%, together
with non-operating revenues of $50.1 million, operating income of $23.4 million and net of
transfers to other governmental agencies of $67.8 million.

The following summarizes the condensed changes in net position of the Corporation for the years
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012:

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

June 30, Change
2013 2012 Amount Percent
Operating revenues $ 651,380,216 636,540,869 14,839,347 2.33%
Operating expenses:

Compensation and medical benefits 483,032,162 551,859,381 (68,827,219) -12.47%

General and administrative 144,905,844 140,365,761 4,540,083 3.23%

Total operating expenses 627,938,006 692,225,142 (64,287,136) -9.29%

Operating income (loss) 23,442,210 (55,684,273) 79,126,483 -142.10%

Non-operating revenues - net 50,095,927 59,999,155 (9,903,228) -16.51%
Transfers to other governmental

agencies - net (67,802,470) (51,342,373) (16,460,097) 32.06%

Change in net position 5,735,667 (47,027,491) 52,763,158 -112.20%

Net position- beginning of year 331,365,305 378,392,796 (47,027,491) -12.43%

Net position- end of year $ 337,100,972 331,365,305 5,735,667 1.73%

The Corporation recognizes as income the subscribed premiums, which represent the preliminary
premiums assessed at the beginning of the fiscal year plus additional premiums imposed or
expected to be imposed as a result of the final settlement of premiums under the insurance policy
or reduced by any unearned or reimbursable portion or provision for uncollectible accounts, as
determined. Premiums are based on individual employers’ reported payroll ledgers using
predetermined insurance rates based on the employers’ risk classifications. The regular policies
are issued for a one—year period consistent with the Corporation’s fiscal year, which runs from
July 1 to June 30. Incidental policies are issued to cover special risks over a pre-determined
period of time. Unearned premiums represent the remaining portion at the end of the fiscal year,
which is attributed to the unexpired term of the incidental policies issued during the fiscal year.

Policy costs consist mainly of salaries and certain underwriting expenses. Benefits are recorded
on an accrual basis, which includes benefit paid and a liability to cover estimated incurred but
unpaid benefits and benefit adjustments expenses based on the ultimate settling cost, as
determined by the independent actuary.
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* Operating revenues increased by $14.8 million in 2013 (or 2.33%)

Operating revenues increased by $14.8 million as compared to 2012. The increase in operating
revenues results from an increase of $23.3 million in insurance premiums earned offset by an
increase of $13.3 million in the provision for uncollectible insurance premiums and an increase
of only $2 million in the reimbursement of insurance premiums. The increase is also a result of
an adjustment made in 2012 to operating revenues of approximately $13 million decreasing the
additional premium estimate and an adjustment made in 2013 of approximately $7 million
reducing the unearned premiums at year end. It also should be noted that although the number of
new formalized policies slightly decreased from 42,543 for 2012 to 40,115 in 2013, premiums
imposed in 2013 corresponding to prior years increased by 8.5% as compared to 2012. The
Corporation also experienced an increase of $8.9 million in income from uninsured employers.

Increase in the provision for uncollectible premiums was mainly driven by an administrative
order (No. 12-02) issued by the Corporation at the end of fiscal year 2012, establishing an
incentive plan for employers with unpaid premiums incurred prior to fiscal years ended on or
before June 30, 2010, to facilitate the payment of such debt due to the Corporation (see Note 4).
Discounts under the incentive plan amounted to approximately $32.9 million in fiscal year 2013,
as compared to $2.8 million in fiscal year 2012.

* Compensation and medical benefits decreased by $68.8 million in 2013 (or 12.47%)

Compensation benefits for the year ended June 30, 2013 amounted to $144.2 million, a decrease
of $27.9 million or 16%, when compared to $172.1 million for the prior year. Decrease is
principally attributed to short term disability (per diem) payments for 2013, which experienced a
decrease of approximately $19 million because the Corporation started a pilot program named
Global 360, in which the Official Disability Guidelines of the Work Loss Data Management
would be used to determine short term disability (per diem) payments. These guidelines provide
minimum and maximum time limits in which cases can remain in resting period, thus shortening
significantly the days for which per diem payments are made.

Medical benefits for the year ended June 30, 2013 amounted to $345.3 million, a decrease of
$10.6 million or 3%, when compared to $355.9 million for the prior year. Such lower expenses
are mainly due to efforts of management to decrease the controllable costs like contracted
services. The Corporation experienced decreases from 2012 in practically all medical services
offered to the injured, thus decreasing medical expenses in 2013.

In relations to the pension and postretirement benefits other than pension obligations, these
decreased by 34% as compared to 2012, as a result of Act No. 3 of 2013 which was signed into
law by the Governor of Puerto Rico on April 4, 2013. This Act represents a comprehensive
reform of the Employee Retirement System of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Act No. 3
became effective on July 1, 2013 and amends the provisions of the different benefits structures
under the ERS (See Note 17).
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Another driver in the decrease in compensation and medical benefits was the provision for
compensation benefits, medical benefits and benefit adjustment expenses which changed from a
provision of $23.8 million in 2012 to a credit of $6.5 million in 2013, resulting from the
adjustments made to the liability for incurred unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment expenses to

conform it with the actuarially determined present value of estimated outstanding losses as of
June 30, 2013.

* General and administrative expenses (excluding depreciation and amortization)
increased by $3.1 million in 2013 (or 2.3%)

General and administrative expenses (excluding depreciation and amortization) increased only
by 2.3% mainly as a result of an increase in retirees during 2013, as a result of recent changes in
the Employees Retirement System of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. There was also an
increase in the contributions made to the retirement plan for 2013.

* Non-operating revenues-net decreased by $9.9 million in 2013 (or 16.51%)

Net non—operating revenues represent principally interest and dividend income, net change in
fair value of investments, including derivative instruments, and interest expense. Government
accounting policies require that investments be carried at fair value; thus realized gains and
losses from the sale of securities and unrealized changes in the fair value of outstanding
securities are recorded through operations.

Net increase in fair value of investments, including derivative instruments, amounted to
$28.5 million in 2013, a slight decrease of $.5 million or 1.7% when compared to an increase in
fair value of investments of $29.0 million in 2012. On the other hand, interest and dividend
income, net of costs (investment managers’ fees) amounted to $35.8 million in 2013, a decrease
of $6.9 million or 16.16%, when compared to $42.7 million in 2012. The decrease in interest and
dividend income is principally attributed to lower interest rates experienced in the fixed income
portfolio when compared to prior year and the withdrawal of approximately $69 million from
investment securities to the operational cash and for payment of the Corporation’s debt.

Interest expense amounted to $11.4 million in 2013, a slight decrease of $.3 million or 3%, when
compared to $11.7 million in 2012.

During 2013, management of the Corporation expressed their intention to demolish part of the
Kupey building which was acquired during fiscal year 2012, thus recording an asset impairment
loss of $2.8 million, representing the portion of the asset that management believes is not
recoverable, which is part of non-operating revenues-net for the year ended June 30, 2013.

* Transfers to other governmental agencies-net increased by $16.5 million in 2013 (or
32.16%)

The Corporation is required by legislation, to transfer to other governmental agencies funds for

programs related to injured employees and their families. During the year ended June 30, 2013,
the Corporation transferred funds to the Industrial Commission of Puerto Rico, the Department

10
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of Labor and Human Resources, the Department of the Family, Puerto Rico Housing Finance
Authority and the Labor Affairs Office amounting to $67.8 million compared to $51.3 million in
2012. Increase was mainly experienced as a result of Act #134 of July 2, 2012, which required a
one-time transfer of $24 million from the Corporation to the “Budgetary Support Fund of 2012-

2013” under the custody of the Office of Management and Budget. Such transfer was made on
September 7, 2012.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

= Capital assets-net decreased by $2.6 million in 2013 (or 2.5%)

Capital assets are comprised of land, buildings used to render services to workers, medical and
offices’ equipment, motor vehicles and assets under capital lease. During the year ended June 30,
2013 capital assets, net of depreciation and amortization, decreased by $2.6 million mainly as a
result of an impairment loss recorded on a Corporation’s building of $2.8 million. The
Corporation has no significant capital commitments at June 30, 2013. Refer to Note 6 to the
basic financial statements for further information regarding the Corporation’s net capital assets.

= Note payable did not change in 2013

On May 11, 2011, the Corporation entered into a loan agreement (the Loan) with a private
financial institution for the amount of $242,000,000. The Loan matures on May 1, 2028 and
carries a variable interest rate of 30 day LIBOR plus a 2.25% spread. First principal payment is
due on fiscal year 2014. This loan requires the Corporation to comply with certain restrictive
covenants, which, in the event of non—compliance, provide the financial institution the right to
declare the outstanding debt as due and payable in cancellation of the loan agreement. One of
the covenants requires the Corporation to pledge 130% of the outstanding principal on the loan
in securities in its investment portfolio. Proceeds of the loan were used to repay a note payable
and interest payable to the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico ($220,000,000
principal and $3,273,000 in interest), purchase of two buildings ($8,490,000 for building
purchased before June 30, 2011 and $10,100,000 for building purchased after June 30, 2011) and
other purposes ($137,000).

CONTACTING THE CORPORATION’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This report is designed to provide all interested parties with a general overview of the
Corporation’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional information should be addressed to State Insurance Fund Corporation, PO
Box 365028, San Juan, Puerto Rico, 00936-5028.

ook kokok
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2013

Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 161,162,902
Accounts receivable, net 84,028,502
Inventories 3,556,922
Prepaid expenses 52,463
Investments 474,340,341
Total current assets 723,141,130
Non current assets:
Investments 720,815,042
Restricted investments 314,600,000
Capital assets-net of accumulated depreciation/amortization:
Land 18,532,166
Depreciable assets, including software 85,029,696
Total non current assets 1,138,976,904
Total assets $ 1,862,118,034

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities:
Liability for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment expenses § 191,614,058

Accounts payable 78,554,749
Accrued liabilities 33,501,973
Unearned premiums 21,858,128
Accrual for reimbursement of premiums 53,645,472
Securities lending obligations 102,689,084
Current portion of:

Other notes payable 5,026,926
Obligation under capital lease 691,302

Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Note payable-current portion 16,133,332
Total current liabilities 503,715,024
(Continued)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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STATE INSURANCE FUND
CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2013

Non current liabilities:

Liability for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment expenses 629,319,899
Accrued liabilities 48,542,848
Accrual for reimbursement of premiums 60,156,819
Other notes payable 28,135,327
Obligation under capital lease 29,280,477
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:

Note payable-due in more than one year 225,866,668

Total non current liabilities 1,021,302,038

Total liabilities 1,525,017,062

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 20 and 21)

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 40,427,830
Restricted 72,600,000
Unrestricted 224,073,142
Total net position 337,100,972

Total liabilities and net position $ 1,862,118,034

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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STATE INSURANCE FUND
CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth

of Puerto Rico)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year ended June 30, 2013

Operating revenues:
Insurance premiums earned
Miscellaneous income, net
Less:
Reimbursement of insurance premiums
Provision for uncollectible insurance premiums

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Compensation benefits
Medical benefits and legal fees
Provision (credit) for compensation benefits, medical benefits,
and benefit adjustment expenses
Administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Non operating (expenses) revenues:
Loss on impairment of capital asset
Interest and dividend income, net
Net increase in fair value of investments, gross gains and losses
Cost of securities lending transactions
Interest on notes payable and obligation under capital lease

Total non operating revenues, net

Revenue before transfers to other governmental agencies
Transfers to other governmental agencies

Change in net position

Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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703,813,260
9,925,732

(37,432,436)
(24,926,340)

651,380,216

144,179,537
345,326,959

(6,474,334)
137,299,038
7,606,806

627,938,006

23,442,210

(2,767,992)
35,835,611
28,505,361

(88,500)

(11,388,553)

50,095,927

73,538,137
(67,802,470)

5,735,667

331,365,305

337,100,972




STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Excess of collections over reimbursements of insurance premiums
Payments of compensation benefits
Payments of medical benefits and legal fees
Payments of administrative expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from non capital financing activities:
Transfers to governmental agencies
Decrease in securities lending obligations
Payments of securities lending transaction costs

Net cash used in non capital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets
Other capital assets transaction
Payments of other notes payable, net of imputed interest
Payments of obligation under capital lease
Payments of interest on notes payable and obligation under capital lease

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and redemptions of debt and equity securities
Purchases of debt and equity securities
Decrease in investments held under securities lending transactions
Collections of interest and dividend income
Collections in excess of originations of employees loans

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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$

639,816,067

(139,936,673)
(342,573,236)
(132,803,423)

24,502,735

(67,802,470)
(9,370,721)
(88,500)

(77,261,691)

(7,592,769)
(131,020)
(4,489,182)
(624,365)
(11,388,553)

(24,225,889)

1,610,027,779
(1,572,522,767)
2,956,266
38,001,486
436,582

78,899,346

1,914,501
159,248,401

161,162,902

(Continued)



STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2013

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income b
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Changes in assets and liabilities that increase (decrease) cash flows from operating activities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Liability for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned premiums
Accrual for reimbursement of premiums

Net cash provided by operating activities $

Summary of non-cash transactions:

Securities purchased but not yet received

Securities sold but not yet delivered

Net decrease in the fair value of investments (net unrealized losses)
Accretion of discount on investments

Loss on impairment of capital asset

B H B B B B

Retirement of fully depreciated capital assets

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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23,442,210

7,606,806
24,926,340

(28,920,113)
(331,463)
76,069
921,769
5,605,070
(1,253,577)
(2,770,099)
(4,800,277)

24,502,735

5,880,323

7,161,566

10,345,779

20,229

2,767,992

1,315,327
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

Organization

The State Insurance Fund Corporation (the Corporation) is a discretely presented component
unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Commonwealth) created by Law No. 45 of
April 18, 1935, as amended, known as the Workmen Compensation Insurance Act (the Act).
The objectives of the law are to:

protect workers against the effects of employment related accidents and illness;
establish employers’ responsibility to insure its employees;

establish the type of insurance coverage; and

regulate the insurance coverage to make it mandatory for employers.

This insurance covers workers against injuries, disability or death because of work or
employment related accidents, or because of illness suffered as a consequence of their
employment. On October 29, 1992, the Act was amended by Law No. 83 to convert the
agency into a governmental corporation and to establish the functions and responsibilities of

the Corporation’s Board of Directors and Administrator, and the Industrial Medical Advisory
Board.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Corporation conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, as applicable to governmental entities.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting policies.

In December 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements (GAS 62), which is effective for periods beginning after December 15,
2011. GAS 62 applies to accounting and financial reporting for governmental, business-type
activities, and proprietary funds, except as identified in the Statement. GAS 62 incorporates
in the GASB’s authoritative literature certain FASB and AICPA pronouncements issued on
or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements, and codifies all sources of GAAP for state and local governments so
that they derive from a single source. The Codification does not change GAAP. Instead, it
takes many of the individual pronouncements that currently comprise GAAP and reorganizes
them by accounting Topics, and displays all Topics using a consistent structure. The order in
which the Topics are presented corresponds to the order of the primary locations within the
GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

(Codification). This Statement supersedes GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting.

There was no material impact on the Corporation’s financial statements as a result of the
implementation of GAS 62.

For the year ended June 30, 2013, the Corporation also implemented GASB 63, Financial
Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position (GAS 63). The Statement provides financial reporting guidance for deferred
outflows of resources, which is a consumption of net assets that is applicable to a future
reporting period and deferred inflows of resources which is an acquisition of net assets that is
applicable to a future reporting period. The Statement also amends the net asset reporting
requirements in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis- for State and Local Governments and other pronouncements by
incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the
definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure
as net position, rather than net assets. The impact on the Corporation’s basic financial
statements was limited to replacing “Net Assets” with “Net Position” and “Invested in capital
assets, net of related debt” with “Net investment in capital assets”.

The Corporation follows GASB Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted
Principles for State and Local Governments, in the preparation of its financial statements.

Following is a description of the most significant accounting policies:

(a) Reporting Entity

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) establishes the criteria used
in determining which organizations should be included in these financial statements.
The GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards, Section 2100, requires the inclusion of government organizations for
which the Corporation is financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined
as 1) appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board and either (a)
the ability to impose will by the primary government or (b) the possibility that the
component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the
primary government; or (2) fiscal dependency on the primary government. The
Corporation does not have component units for which it is financially accountable.
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

The Corporation is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and its
financial statements are included in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Basis of Accounting

The Corporation accounts for insurance premiums, claim costs, acquisition costs, loss
contingencies and other related costs in accordance with provisions of the GASB
Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and
Related Insurance Issues, as amended, which requires that the financial statements of
the Corporation be presented on the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Presentation

The Corporation’s financial statements use the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

The statement of net position and the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in
net position report information on all activities of the Corporation. The statement of
net position presents the Corporation’s assets, deferred outflows of resources (if any),
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources (if any), with the residual of all elements
presented in a financial position statement reported as net position. Net position is
reported in three categories:

o Net investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds,
notes, and other debt that are attributed to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

o Restricted component of net position consists of net position that is legally
restricted by outside parties or by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. As of June 30, 2013, the Corporation’s restricted net
assets amounted to $72.6 million. Refer to Note 12 for restrictions related to
note payable.
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30,2013

. Unrestricted component of net position consists of net position that does not
meet the definition of the two preceding categories. Unrestricted net position
often is designated, in order to indicate that management does not consider it
to be available for general operations. Unrestricted net position often has
constraints on use that are imposed by management, but such constraints may
be removed or modified.

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents
information on how the Corporation’s net position changed during the reporting
period. The Corporation distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses are those that result from the
Corporation providing the services that correspond to their principal ongoing
operations, which include those that result from providing insurance coverage and
compensation benefits to the injured and disabled workers, including death benefits.
Revenues and expenses not meeting these definitions are reported as non operating
revenues and expenses.

The statement of cash flows shows changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting
from operating, non-capital and capital financing and investing activities, which
include cash receipts and cash disbursements information.

Revenue Recognition and Unearned Premiums

The Corporation recognizes as income the subscribed premiums, which include the
preliminary premiums assessed at the beginning of the fiscal year plus additional
premiums imposed as a result of the final settlement of premiums under the insurance
policy during the year and an estimate for additional premiums not yet imposed.
Premiums are based on individual employers’ reported payroll ledgers using
predetermined insurance rates based on employers’ risk classifications. The regular
policies are issued for a one—year period consistent with the Corporation’s fiscal year,
which runs from July 1 to June 30. Incidental policies are issued to cover special risks
over a pre-determined period of time. Unearned premiums represent the remaining
portion at the end of the fiscal year, which is attributed to the unexpired term of the
incidental policies issued during the fiscal year.
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

Insurance premiums due to the Corporation are recorded as insurance premiums
receivable, net of the allowance for uncollectible accounts. Premiums receivable
consist of both billed and unbilled amounts. Unbilled amounts include premiums for
policies, which have not been assessed plus an estimate for additional premiums that
are expected to be imposed as a result of the final settlement of premiums under the
insurance policy.

The estimates made for the additional and the reimbursable premiums are based on
previous experience. The difference between the estimated and the actual amount of
the premiums and the reimbursable premiums is recorded in the year when it is
determined. The estimate of additional premiums is determined by management and
covers the result of the final settlement of premium under the policies and through the
audit of the employers’ payroll ledgers. The accrual of premiums to be reimbursed
represents an estimate actuarially determined based on the historical and projected
results of the settlement of premiums under the policies. These amounts are estimates,
and while the Corporation believes such amounts are reasonable, there can be no
assurance that the amounts ultimately received or disbursed will equal the recorded
amounts.

The accrual for reimbursement of premiums was discounted to reflect the present
value of future reimbursable premium payments using a discounting factor of 3.78%
at June 30, 2013. Management believes that discounting such liability results in a
better matching of costs and revenues since reimbursable premiums have a long
payment cycle.

Current and non current portions of the liability for reimbursement of premiums are
based on projected actuarially determined payments.

Policy Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs consist of salaries and certain underwriting expenses, which are
primarily related to the issuance of new policies. These costs are expensed as incurred
since regular policies are issued for a one—year period, which is consistent with the
Corporation’s fiscal year, July 1*' to June 30" Acquisition costs related to incidental
policies with terms beyond one year are deemed to be insignificant and are charged to
expense as incurred.
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

Reinsurance

The Corporation does not use reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure to large
losses.

Incurred but Unpaid Benefits and Benefit Adjustment Expenses

Benefit expenses are recorded as incurred. The Corporation establishes liabilities for
estimated incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment expenses based on the
ultimate estimated cost of settling the benefits.

Incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment expenses include: (a) individual
case estimates for reported cases (b) aggregate accrual estimates for reported and
unreported cases based on past experience modified for current trends, and (c) an
estimate of expenses for investigating and settling cases. The liabilities for cases
reported which have not been adjudged and cases incurred but not yet reported are
estimated by an independent actuary. The estimated liability also includes cases under
reconsideration or on appeal before the Industrial Commission of Puerto Rico, a
governmental agency, for additional medical treatment or benefits.

The liabilities for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment expenses were
discounted to reflect the present value of future benefit payments using a discounting
factor of 3.78% at June 30, 2013. Management believes that discounting such liability
results in a better matching of costs and revenues since compensation benefits have a
long payment cycle.

Management believes that the liability for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit
adjustment expenses, actuarially determined at June 30, 2013, is a reasonable estimate
of the ultimate net cost of settling benefits and benefit expenses incurred. Because
actual benefit costs depend upon such factors as duration of worker disability,
medical cost trends, occupational disease, inflation, and other social and economic
factors, the process used in computing the ultimate cost of settling benefits and
expenses for administering benefits is necessarily based on estimates. The amount
ultimately paid may be above or below such estimates. Adjustments resulting from
changes in estimates of these liabilities are charged or credited to operations in the
period in which they occur.
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

Current and non current portions of the liability for estimated incurred but unpaid
benefits and benefit adjustment expenses are based on projected actuarially
determined payments.

Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell

From time to time, the Corporation enters into purchases of securities under
agreements to resell (resell agreements). The amounts advanced under these
agreements generally represent short—term loans and are reflected as an asset. The
securities underlying these agreements are usually held by the broker or his/her agent,
with whom the agreement is transacted.

Investments

Investments mainly include U.S. government and agencies’ obligations, mortgage-
backed securities, and corporate debt and equity obligations. Investments in equity
securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities
are carried at fair value. Money market investments with a remaining maturity at time
of purchase of one year or less are carried at cost. Investment positions in 2a—7 like
external investment pools are carried at the pools’ share price. Fair value is
determined based on quoted market prices and quotations received from independent
broker/dealers or pricing service organizations. The Corporation has private equity
investments, whose fair values have been estimated in the absence of readily
determinable fair values. This estimate is based on information provided by the
underlying fund managers.

Securities transactions are accounted for on the trade date. Realized gains and losses
from the sale of securities and unrealized changes in the fair value of outstanding
securities are included in net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments.
Realized gains and losses are computed as the difference between the proceeds of the
sale and the original cost of the investment sold. Gains and losses on the sale of
securities are determined based on the specific identification method.
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

Securities Lending Transactions

The Corporation accounts for and reports its security lending transactions in
accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 28, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Securities Lending Transactions, as amended. This statement
establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for securities lending
transactions in which governmental entities (lenders) transfer their securities to
broker—dealers and other entities (borrowers) for collateral and simultaneously agree
to return the collateral for the same securities in the future.

Cash received as collateral on securities lending transactions and investments made
with that cash are reported as assets. Securities received as collateral are reported as
assets if the Corporation has the ability to pledge or sell them without a borrower
default. Liabilities resulting from these securities lending transactions also are
reported in the statement of net assets. Securities lending transactions collateralized
by letters of credit or by securities that the Corporation does not have the ability to
pledge or sell unless the borrower defaults are not reported as assets and liabilities in
the statement of net assets.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for uncollectible insurance premiums and other receivables is an
amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb possible losses on
existing receivables that may become uncollectible based on evaluations of the
collectability of the receivables and prior credit loss experience. Because of
uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, the related allowance may change in
the future.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost (first—in, first-out method).

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization expense is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, or in the
case of assets under capital lease, over the term of the lease, whichever is shorter.
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

The Corporation records as capital expenditures, assets with an individual cost of
more than $100. The useful lives of these assets are as follow:

Description Useful Lives
Buildings and improvements 3-50 years
Medical and office equipment 3-10 years
Software 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Assets under capital leases Lease term

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance, which do not extend the useful lives of the
assets, are charged to operations in the year incurred. At the time capital assets are
sold or otherwise disposed, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the books and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is credited or charged
to operations.

Accounting for the Impairment of Capital Assets

The Corporation accounts for asset impairment under the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital
Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. This statement establishes accounting and
financial reporting standards for impairments of capital assets. A capital asset is
considered impaired when its service utility has declined significantly and
unexpectedly. A capital asset generally should be considered impaired if both (a) the
decline in service utility of the capital asset is large in magnitude and (b) the event or
change in circumstances are outside the normal life cycle of the capital asset.
Impaired capital assets that will no longer be used by the Corporation should be
reported at the lower of carrying value or fair value.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences, such as unpaid vacation and sick leave pay, are accrued when
incurred using the pay or salary rates in effect at the statement of net position’s date.
The employees of the Corporation are granted 30 days of vacation and 18 days of sick
leave annually. An additional amount is accrued for certain salary related benefits
associated with the payment of compensated absences. In the event of employee
resignation, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation and sick leave days.
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

Termination Benefits

The Administration accounts for termination benefits in accordance with the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits. This
Statement establishes accounting standards for termination benefits. Pursuant to this
Statement, the Administration should recognize a liability and expense for voluntary
termination benefits (for example, early-retirement incentives) when the offer is
accepted and the amount can be estimated. At June 30, 2013, no formal voluntary
termination benefits were incurred.

Pensions

The Corporation accounts for pension costs under the provisions of GASB Statement
No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Government Employers. This
statement establishes standards for the measurement, recognition and display of
pension expense and related liabilities in financial statements of state and local
governmental employers.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

The Corporation accounts for postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB)
under the provisions of the GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This
statement requires a systematic, accrual-basis measurement and recognition of OPEB
cost (expense) over a period that approximates employees’ years of service and
provides information about actuarial accrued liabilities associated with OPEB and
whether and to what extent progress is being made in funding the plan. GASB No. 45
allows employers to amortize the portion of the cost attributed to past service over a
period not to exceed thirty (30) years.

Income Taxes

The Corporation, as a governmental corporation of the Commonwealth, is exempt
from the payment of income taxes.
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

® Statement of Cash Flows

The accompanying statement of cash flows is presented in accordance with the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and
Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting. The provisions of governmental accounting standards require that the
direct method be used to present the funds inflows and outflows of the Corporation.
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Corporation considers all highly
liquid debt instruments with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be
cash equivalents.

(u) Future Adoption of Accounting Pronouncements

The GASB has issued the following Statements that have effective dates after June
30, 2013:

o GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections-2012-an amendment of
GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62, which is effective for periods beginning
after December 15, 2012.

o GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, which is effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2013.

o GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions —
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, which is effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2014.

. GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of
Government Operations, which is effective for government combinations and
disposals of government operations occurring in financial reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2013.

. GASB  Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, which is effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2013.
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

° GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an amendment of GASB Statement No.
68, which is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2014.

Management is evaluating the impact that these statements will have on the
Corporation’s basic financial statements.

Risk Management

The Corporation is exposed to the risk of loss from torts, theft, damages to, and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, employee injuries and illnesses, natural
disasters, environmental and other losses. Commercial insurance coverage is obtained
for claims that may arise from such matters. The commercial insurance coverage is
negotiated by the Treasury Department of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and the
cost is paid by the Corporation. No additional payments were made after the annual
insurance costs were determined.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The accounts requiring the
use of significant estimates include certain receivables, reserve for future benefits,
deferred premiums reserve, returned premiums, pension and OPEB liabilities and
useful lives of property and equipment. The current economic environment has
increased the degree of uncertainty inherent in these estimates and assumptions.
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STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Corporation’s cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2013 are comprised of the
following:

Description Amount
Cash on hand $ 1,015,512
Cash in commercial banks 9,373,140
Total cash on hand and in banks 10,388,652
Interest bearing deposit accounts (IBA's) with GDB:
Due on demand 23,123,408
Cash equivalents-investments (see Note 4) 127,650,842
Total $ 161,162,902

Custodial credit risk related to deposits is the risk that in the event of a financial institution
failure, the Corporation’s deposits might not be recovered. The Commonwealth requires that
public funds deposited in commercial banks in Puerto Rico must be fully collateralized for
the amount deposited in excess of federal depository insurance ($250,000 at June 30, 2013).
At June 30, 2013, all securities pledged by depository institutions as collateral are held by a
trustee of the Treasury Department of the Commonwealth. As of June 30, 2013, the
Corporation had approximately $7.9 million in depository balance with financial institutions,
which were insured and/or collateralized.

Interest bearing deposits with GDB are uninsured and uncollateralized. These deposits are
exposed to custodial credit risk.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the value
of a deposit. Cash in foreign currency present minimal foreign currency risk at June 30, 2013.

See Note 4 for additional information related to credit risk, foreign currency risk and
custodial credit risk on cash equivalent investments.
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CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

Investments

The Board of Directors (BOD) of the Corporation has enacted the Statement of Investment
Policy, Guidelines and Objectives (the SIPGO) with the objective of providing general and
specific guidance for the maximization of resources available for the payment of benefits to
injured workers as the pervasive goal of the workers’ compensation coverage of its insurance
program. SIPGO sets as the primary objective for the available funds, to maximize the yield
of invested assets, while having the adequate liquidity to pay obligations as they become due.
The strategic objective is accomplished through a proper mix of adequate time horizon, risk
tolerance and return expectation, and is achieved through strategic assets allocation. SIPGO
provides guidance for the strategic assets allocation including the internally managed short
term funds, securities selection and related restrictions; sets the responsibilities of the BOD,
the Corporation’s management, investment consultants, portfolio managers, and custodians.
The SIPGO establishes standards for review and communication of compliance with the
prevailing policies and procedures. The SIPGO also provides that the Finance Committee of
the BOD (the Finance Committee) is responsible for implementing and monitoring the
investment program of the Corporation. The Finance Committee meets on a quarterly basis.

The SIPGO allows management to purchase or enter into the following investment
instruments:

e United States Government and agencies obligations

e Obligations of the Commonwealth, its agencies, municipalities, public corporations
and instrumentalities

¢ Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA)

» Mortgage pass—through guaranteed by United States Government agencies other than
GNMA, such as Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) and Federal
National Mortgage Association (FNMA), among others

o Mortgage and asset—backed securities

e Common and preferred stocks

Corporate bonds and notes (convertible or non—convertible)

Money market funds and bank—sponsored short-term investment fund

Resell agreements

Commercial paper

Options, futures and interest-rate swap agreements for hedging and risk control

purposes, as well as for the creation of synthetic products, which qualify under any of
the foregoing investment categories
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e Open—end mutual funds with acceptable underlying assets and rated AAA by
Standard & Poor’s or AAA by Moody’s

e Puerto Rico Government Investment Trust Fund (PRGITF)

e Securities lending transactions

The SIPGO establishes limitations and other guidelines on amounts to be invested in the
aforementioned investment categories and by issuer/counterparty and on exposure by
country. In addition, such policy provides guidelines on the institutions with which
investment transactions can be entered into. The BOD of the Corporation will determine,
from time to time, other transactions that the Corporation may enter into. Certain investment
transactions that are generally considered to carry a greater than normal risk require the prior

approval of Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB), a component unit of the
Commonwealth, before being executed.
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The following table summarizes the type and maturity of investments held by the
Corporation at June 30, 2013. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities,
because counter parties may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call
or prepayment penalties. No investment in any one issuer other than the U.S. government and
its agencies, represented 5% or more of total investment portfolio at June 30, 2013.

Within After One After Five After Ten
Investment Type One Year to Five Years to Ten Years Years Total
U S. Treasuries $ 13,714,167 55,099,084 85,980,714 90,858,834 245,652,799
U.S. Treasury Bills 3,559,964 — — — 3,559,964
U.S. sponsored agencies bonds and notes:
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 1,032,944 8,770,744 2,623,490 — 12,427,178
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (FHLMC) 2,362,252 4,891,185 16,089,482 265,046 23,607,965
Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA) 430,516 10,662,609 3,376,226 1,396,352 15,865,703
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) — 2,714,150 1,749,080 — 4,463,230
Other — - 1,711,777 — 1,711,777
Mortgage-backed securities:
Government National Mortgage
Association (GNMA) —_ — — 16,906,663 16,906,663
FNMA 150,655 . 137,860 79,057,755 79,346,270
FHLMC — 260,829 24,738,311 24,999,140
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations
(CMO’s) issued and/or guaranteed by:
GNMA — — — 1,367,052 1,367,052
FNMA — - 10,893 — 10,893
FHLMC — —_ 2,098,278 — 2,098,278
Commercial mortgages — — — 30,102,359 30,102,359
Other — o — 1,254,806 1,254,806
Asset-backed securities — 17,263,818 8,375,589 —_ 25,639,407
Corporate bonds and notes 17,946,209 326,537,111 148,331,553 56,592,361 549,407,234
Foreign government bonds and notes 1,738,264 2,068,257 1,359,813 1,864,140 7,030,474
Municipal bonds — 16,490,202 12,925,569 1,483,049 30,898,820
Money market funds 55,971,630 — — — 55,971,630
External investments pool-
fixed-income securities 1,039,392 — — — 1,039,392
Investments held under securities
lending transactions:
Interest bearing deposits 26,503,895 -— — — 26,503,895
Resell agreements 63,078,754 — - — 63,078,754
Commercial paper 13,106,435 — — — 13,106,435
Total debt securities and fixed—income
external investment pools $ 200,635,077 444,497,160 285,031,153 305,886,728 1,236,050,118
Equity securities 342,127,193
External investment pools-equity securities:
Guayacén Private Equity Fund L P 11 8,036,768
Guayacan Fund of Funds III, L.P 22,055,219
US Government Properties Income & Growth
Fund, L.P 23,392,052
McCoy Investments II, L.P 5,744,875
Total §  1,637,406,225
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As of June 30, 2013, investments were classified as current and non—current in the

accompanying statement of net position as follows:

Description Amount
Current assets:
Cash equivalents $ 127,650,842
Investments in debt and equity securities 474,340,341
Total current assets 601,991,183
Non-current assets 1,035,415,042
Total $ 1,637,406,225
The Corporation’s investments presented as cash equivalents as of June 30, 2013 are
comprised of the following:
Description Amount
Interest bearing deposits held under securities lending transactions:
Certificates of deposit with other banks, due within three months $ 15,501,870
Investments in debt securities held under securities lending transactions:
Commercial paper, due within three months 3,098,589
Resell agreements, due overnight 53,078,753
56,177,342
Investments in:
Money market funds 55,971,630
Total $ 127,650,842

Investments in fixed—income external investment pools include $1,039,392 invested with the
Puerto Rico Government Investment Trust Fund (the PRGITF), a government—sponsored
pool, which is administered by the GDB. The PRGITF may purchase only high quality
securities denominated in U.S. dollars that the investment advisors believe present minimal
credit risk. The PRGITF had an average maturity of less than 60 days; accordingly, they were
presented as investments with maturity of less than one year. The Corporation was exposed
to custodial credit risk. This pool is subject to regulatory oversight by the Commissioner of
Financial Institutions of Puerto Rico. The fair value of the pool is the same as the fair value

of the pool shares.
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The fair value of investments in limited partnerships as of June 30, 2013, amounted to
approximately $59.2 million. The fair values of these investments have been estimated by the
corresponding general partner or fund manager of these partnerships and disclosed in its
respective separate audited financial statements. The allocations of net gain and net loss to
the limited partners are based on certain percentages, as established in the limited partnership
agreements. The investments in limited partnerships were as follows:

During the fiscal year 2013, there were no contributions to the Guayacan Private
Equity Fund L.P. II, a Delaware limited partnership created by Grupo Guayacan, Inc.,
as General Partner, that has a total amount invested at June 30, 2013 of $7,611,802.
The Corporation has a total commitment of $10.0 million. This fund seeks to provide
investors with a superior investment return and extensive diversification by investing
in nineteen (19) private equity investment partnerships in the United States and
Europe. This fund also invests a portion of its assets in a Puerto Rico based private
equity investment entity.

During the fiscal year 2013, an additional investment of approximately $1,956,000
was made in the Guayacén Fund of Funds III, L.P., a limited partnership organized in
April 2007, pursuant to the laws of the State of Delaware, bringing the amount
invested at June 30, 2013 to $21,994,996. The Corporation has a total commitment of
$40.0 million. This partnership intends to seek out, invest in, and add value to
companies, which will be based or operating in Puerto Rico or in companies whose
products or services are targeted at the U.S. Hispanic market, with specific interest in
those companies where Advent-Morro’s Equity Partners, Inc. Puerto Rico contact,
know-how and track record can be leveraged to enhance investment selection and
post-investment value-add. Guayacan Private Fund of Funds III, L.P. will strive to
have a balanced mix of portfolio investments primarily focusing on later stage
opportunities such as: expansion financing, leveraged buyouts, management buyouts,
and recapitalizations. This partnership may invest in de-novo companies that are
being set up to enter established industries via market consolidation opportunities
and/or internal growth.

During the fiscal year 2013, the Corporation invested approximately $312,000 in U.S.
Government Properties Income & Growth Fund, L.P., a limited partnership organized
in August 2011, pursuant to the laws of the State of Delaware. The Corporation has a
total commitment of $25.0 million. The Corporation also received a return of capital
of approximately $1,318,000 during 2013, bringing the amount invested at June 30,
2013 to $21,751,071. This partnership is a real estate fund that targets investments in
assets leased to the U.S. General Services Administration and other federal leases
located in the United States to provide current income and potential asset
appreciation.
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o During the fiscal year 2013, the Corporation invested approximately $750,000 in
McCoy Investments II, L.P., a limited partnership organized in August 2011, pursuant
to the laws of the State of Delaware, bringing the amount invested to $6,600,000 at

The Corporation has a total commitment of $15.0 million. This

partnership was organized to invest in other pooled investment portfolio funds

investing primarily in private equity, including investments in U.S. and non-U.S.
venture capital, leveraged buyout, distressed, turnaround, expansion capital,

June 30, 2013.

June 30, 2013

mezzanine and special situation funds.

At June 30, 2013, the Corporation has variable-rate interest investments, which reset in the

frequency shown below, at 100% of an interest rate index plus a spread, as follows:

Investment Type Reset Amount

Mortgage-backed securities:
CMO's issued and/or guaranteed by:

GNMA Monthly $ 639,495

Other Monthly 1,254,806
Corporate bonds and notes Quarterly 9,039,850
Commercial mortgage bonds Monthly 10,342,148
Government bonds sovereign debt Annual 3,489,897
Municipal bonds Quarterly
US Treasury bonds and notes Semiannually 142,118,295
Investments held under securities lending transactions:

Commercial paper Daily 3,000,000

Resell agreements Daily 10,000,000

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. SIPGO is expected to achieve capital preservation and income generation by
investing in a diversified portfolio of marketable investment grade income and equity
securities. As of June 30, 2013, the SIPGO had established the optimum or efficient
allocation for the total portfolio in accordance with the time horizon, risk tolerance, return
expectations, and assets class preferences. The SIPGO limits its exposure to interest rate risk
by setting duration of the investment portfolio of the fixed income assets not to exceed more
than 10% of the duration of the specific market selected as a benchmark. The duration is a
measure of a debt investment’s exposure to fair value changes arising from changes in the
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interest rates. It uses the present value of cash flows weighted for those cash flows as a
percentage of the investment’s full price. As of June 30, 2013 the duration of a fixed income
portfolio amounted to 7.1 years.

The credit risk related to investments is the risk that debt securities in the Corporation’s
portfolio will decline in price or fail to make principal and interest payments when due
because the issuer of the security experiences a decline in the financial condition. The
Corporation limits its credit risk by investing principally in high quality investments (rated
BBB or better, according to Standard and Poor’s or other equivalent rating agencies when
maturities are longer than a year). In addition, the Corporation restricts investment in certain
securities to avoid concentration and/or increase duration.
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All of the Corporation’s investments in U.S. Treasury securities and mortgage—backed
securities guaranteed by GNMA carry the explicit guarantee of the U.S. government and
represent no risk therefore have been excluded from the following table. The credit quality
ratings for investments in debt securities, excluding U.S. Treasury securities and mortgage—
backed securities guaranteed by GNMA, at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Credit Risk Rating
Investment Type: AAA to A- BBB+ BBB BBB- Not Rated Total
U.S. sponsored agencies bonds and notes:
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 12,427,178 — — — — 12,427,178
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (FHLMC) 23,607,965 — — — — 23,607,965
Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA) 15,865,703 — _ — — 15,865,703
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 4,463,230 — — — — 4,463,230
Other 1,711,777 — — — — 1,711,777
Mortgage-backed securities;
FNMA 79,346,270 — — — — 79,346,270
FHLMC 24,999,140 — — — — 24,999,140
Collateralized mortgage obligations
(CMO’s) issued and/or guaranteed by:
FNMA 10,893 — — — 10,893
FHLMC 2,098,278 — — — 2,098,278
Commercial mortgages 30,102,359 — — — — 30,102,359
Other 1,254,806 — — — 1,254,806
Asset-backed securities 17,263,818 — — — 8,375,589 25,639,407
Corporate bonds and notes 414,479,367 40,508,377 32,915,598 16,903,010 44,600,882 549,407,234
Foreign govemment bonds and notes 6,587,974 — — 442,500 — 7,030,474
Municipal bonds 18,409,181 — — 12,489,639 — 30,898,820
Money market funds —_ — — — 55,971,630 55,971,630
Extemal investments pool-
fixed-income securities 1,039,392 — — — — 1,039,392
Investments held under securities
fending transactions:
Interest bearing deposits 26,503,895 — — — — 26,503,895
Resell agreements 55,078,754 — — — 8,000,000 63,078,754
Commercial paper 13,106,435 — — — — 13,106,435
Total debt securities and fixed-income
extemal investment pools 748,356,415 40,508,377 32,915,598 29,835,149 116,948,101 968,563,641
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Interest bearing deposits with other banks held under securities lending transactions (see
Note 11) are uninsured and uncollateralized. These deposits are exposed to custodial credit
risk.

In accordance with its investment policy, the Corporation manages its exposure to declines in
fair values by structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash
requirements for compensation and medical benefit payments, thereby avoiding the need to
sell securities on the open market prior to maturity. Investments in equity securities are not
subject to the maximum maturity policy since they do not carry a maturity date. The
Corporation is expected to achieve capital preservation and income generation by investing
in a diversified portfolio of marketable, investment grade core fixed—income securities.

As of June 30, 2013, investment maturities as a percentage of total debt securities and fixed—
income external investment pools are as follows:

Maturity Maturity %
Within one year 16%
After one to five years 36%
After five years to ten years 23%
After ten years 25%

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. The Corporation’s investment policy permits investing in
international stocks to diversify the risks of the investment portfolio. The Corporation limits

its exposure to foreign currency risk by limiting the total amount invested to a 5% of the
portfolio.
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As of June 30, 2013, the Corporation had the following investments denominated in foreign
currency:

Description Currency Fair value
Common stock Australian Dollar  § 4,983,262
Canadian Dollar 1,669,273
Swiss Franc 6,356,373
Danish Krone 585,373
Euro 12,079,882
British Pound 7,150,399
Hong Kong Dollar 1,359,320
Japanese Yen 16,549,030
Norwegian Krone 1,980,471
Swedish Krona 469,659
Singapore Dollar 1,036,766
Preferred stock Euro 1,402,186
Government bonds Euro 3,487,717
Total $ 59,109,711

Custodial credit risk related to investments is the risk that, in the event of failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the Corporation may not be able to recover the value of the
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. At June 30,
2013, all securities held in portfolio were registered in the name of the Corporation and were
held in the possession of the Corporation’s custodian banks, JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A.
and Santander Bank, except for securities lent (see Note 11).
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Interest and dividend income for the year ended June 30, 2013, consist of the following:

Description Amount
Interest income on interest bearing deposits with GDB $ 87,320
Interest income on investments 31,527,517
Dividend income on investments 7,272,679
Dividend income on investment in PRGITF 734
Interest income on investments in cash and non-cash

collateral received on securities lending transactions 317,904
Other interest income 1,146,498

40,352,652

Less investment managers' fees (4,517,041)
Total interest and dividend income-net $ 35,835,611

Net increase in the fair value of investments for the year ended June 30, 2013, consists of the
following:

Derivative
Description Investments Instruments Total
Gross realized gains $ 56,711,558 353,475 57,065,033
Gross realized losses (21,926,157) (373,685) (22,299,842)
Net (decrease)/increase in fair value (6,327,978) 68,148 (6,259,830)
Total $ 28,457,423 47,938 28,505,361
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5) Accounts Receivable-Net

Accounts receivable as of June 30, 2013, consist of:

Description Amount

Insurance premiums receivable, including estimated additional premiums-net

of allowance for uncollectible insurance premiums of $302,346,171 $ 59,938,140
Interest and dividends receivable 7,503,289
Securities sold but not yet delivered 7,161,567
Employees' accounts receivable, collateralized with motor vehicles-net of

allowance for uncollectible accounts of $1,125,843 6,441,360
Other accounts receivable-net of allowance for uncollectible

accounts of $143,596,471 2,984,146
Total $ 84,028,502

Insurance premiums receivable include an estimate for additional premiums of $76,759,034.
The Corporation follows a policy of not charging—off uncollectible insurance premiums
against the related allowance for uncollectible accounts, except as discussed below. Other
accounts receivable mainly include the portion of insurance premiums of uninsured
employers considered to be collectible.

On June 6, 2012, pursuant to Act No. 13 of January 10, 2012, the Corporation approved an
incentive plan for employers with unpaid premiums incurred prior to fiscal years ended on or
before June 30, 2010. Employers that meet certain criteria are eligible for a 50% discount on
such unpaid premiums. The incentive plan expired on December 6, 2012. Discounts under

the incentive plan amounted to approximately $32.9 million for the year ended June 30,
2013.
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©) Inventories

Inventories as of June 30, 2013, consist of:

Description Amount
Medicines and medical supplies $ 3,006,310
Office materials and supplies 550,612
Total $ 3,556,922

@) Capital Assets-Net

The activity of capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows:

Balance Balance
Description June 30, 2012 Increase Decrease Reclassifications June 30, 2013
Capital assets not subject to
depreciation and amortization:
Land $ 5,860,166 — — 5,522,000 11,382,166
Land-under capital lease 7,150,000 — — — 7,150,000
13,010,166 — — 5,522,000 18,532,166
Capital assets subject to
depreciation and amortization:
Buildings and improvements 116,825,152 3,108,140 (2,920,657) (5,522,000) 111,490,635
Medical and office equipment 45,641,874 4,484,039 (1,315,327) — 48,810,586
Software 12,222,129 590 — — 12,222,719
Motor vehicles 942 921 — — — 942921
Assets under capital leases:
Building and improvements 27,850,000 — — — 27,850,000
203,482,076 7,592,769 (4,235,984) (5,522,000) 201,316,861
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization:
Buildings and improvements (46,756,832) (3,475,323) 145,684 138,000 (49,948,471)
Medical and office equipment (39,436,954) (3,126,841) 1,315,327 — (41,248,468)
Software (12,113,196) (39,885) — — (12,153,081)
Motor vehicles (832,388) (36,424) —_ — (868,812)
Assets under capital leases
Building and improvements (11,140,000) (928,333) — — (12,068,333)
(110,279,370) (7,606,806) 1,461,011 138,000 (116,287,165)
Capital assets being depreciated
and amortized-net 93,202,706 (14,037) (2,774,973) (5,384,000) 85,029,696
Capital assets-net $ 106,212,872 (14,037) (2,774,973) 138,000 103,561,862
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As of June 30, 2013, the net carrying value of assets under capital leases amounted to
$22,931,667. Amortization of assets under capital leases amounted to $928,333 for the year
ended June 30, 2013.

During 2013, management of the Corporation expressed its intention to demolish a portion of
one of its buildings which was acquired during fiscal year 2012, thus denoting the presence
of an impairment indicator. After testing for impairment, an impairment loss of $2,767,992
was recorded for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Liability for Incurred but Unpaid Benefits and Benefit Adjustment Expenses

The liability for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment expenses is based on
historical claims experience data, assumptions, and projections as to future events, including
claims frequency, severity, persistency and inflationary trends determined by an independent
actuarial study. This liability has been discounted at 3.78% in 2013. The actuarial study
considered the experience of the Corporation from fiscal years 1998-1999 to 20112012, and
included estimates for cases reported that have not been adjudged and cases incurred but not
reported. The assumptions used in estimating and establishing the liability are reviewed
annually based on current circumstances and trends. Any resulting adjustments are
considered to be a change in an accounting estimate and accounted for as an increase
(decrease) to expenses of the Corporation during the current period.

The Corporation has established a liability for both, reported and unreported insured events,

which includes estimates of future payment of benefits and related benefit adjustment
expenses.
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The liability for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment expenses as of June 30,
2013, consists of:

Description Amount
Compensation benefits:

Cases adjudged:

Long-term partial disability $ 20,196,371
Long-term total disability 228,284,392
Death 33,996,749
282,477,512

Cases reported not adjudged and cases incurred but not reported:

Short-term disability (per diem) 112,422,501
Long-term partial disability 127,512,998
Long-term total disability 96,495,371
Death (1,931,216)

334,499,654

Total compensation benefits 616,977,166
Medical benefits 134,869,166
Loss adjustment expense, including legal fees 69,087,625
Total $ 820,933,957
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The following provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance for the liability
for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefits adjustment expenses for the year ended June 30,
2013:

Description Amount

Liability for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment

expenses at beginning of year $ 820,012,188
Incurred benefits related to:
Insured events of the current year 294,086,419
Insured events of the prior years 187,656,312
Total incurred benefits 481,742,731
Benefit payments related to:
Insured events of the current year (293,615,766)
Insured events of the prior years (187,205,196)
Total benefit payments (480,820,962)
Liability for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit
adjustment expenses at end of year $ 820,933,957

9) Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2013, consist of:

Description Amount
Accounts payable:
Securities purchased not yet received $ 5,880,323
Due to employers 12,888,570
Suppliers, professional services and others 59,785,856
Total accounts payable 78,554,749
Accrued liabilities:
Compensated absences-vacations and sick leave 46,409,545
Accruals for Christmas bonus, salary increases,
compensatory time and other fringe benefits 15,695,241
Postemployment benefits other than pensions (see Notes 17 and 18) 13,261,249
Accruals for claims and contingencies (see Note 21) 5,675,705
Accrued interest payable 1,003,081
Total accrued liabilities 82,044,821
Total $ 160,599,570
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Accrual for Reimbursement of Premiums

As of June 30, 2013, the accrual for reimbursement of premiums as determined by the
independent actuary was classified as current and non-current in the accompanying statement
of net position as follows:

Description Amount
Due within one year $ 53,645,472
Due in more than one year 60,156,819
Total $ 113,802,291

The provision for reimbursement of insurance premiums for the year ended June 30, 2013
amounted approximately to $37,432,000, which includes a current year credit of
approximately $4,800,000 to reflect changes in the accrual for reimbursement of premiums
determined by an independent actuary. A discount rate of 3.78% was used to determine
present value.

Securities Lending Obligations

The Commonwealth statutes and the Corporation’s Board of Directors’ policies permit the
Corporation to use its investments to enter into securities lending transactions, whereby
securities are transferred to an independent broker or dealer in exchange for collateral in the
form of cash, securities and/or irrevocable bank letters of credit.

The Corporation’s securities custodian, JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as agent of the
Corporation, manages the securities lending program and receives cash collateral, securities
or irrevocable bank letters of credit as collateral. The collateral securities cannot be pledged
or sold by the Corporation unless the borrower defaults. The collateral requirement is equal
to 102 percent for securities issued in the United States and 105 percent for securities issued
outside of the United States, of the fair value of the security lent. Additional collateral has to
be provided by the next business day if the collateral fair value falls below the fair value of
the securities lent. All security loans can be terminated on demand by either the Corporation
or the borrower. In lending securities, the term to maturity of the securities loans is matched
with the term to maturity of the investment made with the cash collateral. Such matching
existed at year—end.
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At year—end, the Corporation has no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts
the Corporation owes the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe the Corporation.
Contracts with the lending agents require them to indemnify the Corporation if the borrowers
fail to return the securities (and if the collateral is inadequate to replace the securities lent) or

fail to pay the Corporation for income distributions by the securities’ issuers while the
securities are on loan.

Securities lent as of June 30, 2013 had a fair value of $231,551,832 and were secured with
collateral received with a fair value of $236,702,983.

Securities lent for which cash was received as collateral as of June 30, 2013, consist of:

Description Amount
U.S. Treasury notes and bonds $ 14,424,544
U.S. sponsored agencies bonds and notes 6,560,578
Corporate bonds and notes 34,647,802
Equity securities 44,783,015
Total $ 100,415,939

Cash collateral received as of June 30, 2013 amounted to $102,689,084 (see Note 4) and was
invested as follows:

Description Amount
Commercial paper $ 13,106,435
Resell agreements 63,078,754
Interest bearing deposits:
Certificates of deposit with other banks 26,503,895
Total $ 102,689,084
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In addition, the Corporation had the following lending obligations as of June 30, 2013 for
which securities were received as collateral:

Fair Value

Securities Collateral

Description Lent Received
U.S. Treasury notes and bonds $ 120,153,793 122,671,644
U.S. Treasury bills 1,199,988 1,242,620
Corporate bonds and notes 2,949,422 3,114,062
U.S. sponsored agencies bonds and notes 6,832,690 6,985,573
Total $ 131,135,893 134,013,899

Cost of securities lending transactions for the year ended June 30, 2013 consist of the

following:
Description Amount
Borrower rebates $ (64,425)
Agent fees 152,925
Total $ 88,500

(12) Note Payable
Note payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2013, is as follows:

June 30, 2012 Advances Payments June 30, 2013
$ 242,000,000 — — 242,000,000

On May 11, 2011, the Corporation entered into a loan agreement (the Loan) with a private
financial institution for the amount of $242,000,000. The Loan matures on May 1, 2028 and
carries a variable interest rate of 30 day LIBOR (0.19% at June 30, 2013) plus a 2.25%
spread. This loan requires the Corporation to comply with certain restrictive covenants,
which, in the event of non-compliance, provide the financial institution the right to declare
the outstanding debt as due and payable in cancellation of the loan agreement. One of the
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covenants requires the Corporation to pledge 130% of the outstanding principal on the loan
in securities in its investment portfolio. Proceeds of the loan were used to repay a note
payable and interest payable to the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico
($220,000,000 principal and $3,273,000 in interest), purchase of two buildings with land
($8,490,000 for building purchased before June 30, 2011 and $10,100,000 for building
purchased during fiscal year 2012) and other purposes ($137,000).

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for the
note payable are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 16,133,332 5,841,092 21,974,424
2015 16,133,332 5,439,412 21,572,744
2016 16,133,332 5,037,733 21,171,065
2017 16,133,332 4,636,053 20,769,385
2018 16,133,332 4,234,373 20,367,705
2019-2023 80,666,660 15,146,672 95,813,332
2024-2028 80,666,680 5,104,681 85,771,361
242,000,000 45,440,016 287,440,016

Less current portion (16,133,332) (5,841,092) (21,974,424)
§ 225,866,668 39,598,924 265,465,592
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(13) Other Notes Payable

During 1999, the Corporation acquired the facilities where four regional offices are located.
In consideration for the facilities acquired, the Corporation entered into non—interest bearing
financing agreements with the sellers, payable on an installment basis and collateralized with
first mortgages over the underlying facilities. The original terms of these notes payable are as

follows:
Original
Note Description Balance
1 Non-interest bearing note, due in September 2018, payable in 40
semi-annual installments, effective interest rate of 6.54% $ 35,001,060
2 Non-interest bearing note, due in September 2018, payable in 40
semi-annual installments, effective interest rate of 6.54% 21,419,834
3 Non-interest bearing note, due in October 2018, payable in 40
semi-annual installments, effective interest rate of 6.31% 16,619,468
4 Non-interest bearing note, due in March 2019, payable in 40
semi-annual installments, effective interest rate of 6.84% 53,285,454
Total payments 126,325,816
Less imputed interest at the inception of the notes (54,957,702)
Total original balance $ 71,368,114
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The activity of these notes payable for the year ended June 30, 2013, is as follows:

Balance Balance
Description June 30,2012 Advances Payments June 30, 2013

Note payable (gross):

Note 1 $ 12,744,600 — (1,970,285) 10,774,315

Note 2 6,907,625 — (1,044,237) 5,863,388

Note 3 4,900,546 — (727,584) 4,172,962

Note 4 20,858,442 — (2,955,847) 17,902,595
Total 45,411,213 — (6,697,953) 38,713,260
Portion representing interest:

Note 1 (2,061,327) - 612,699 (1,448,628)

Note 2 (1,126,383) — 332,652 (793,731)

Note 3 (781,858) — 229,330 (552,528)

Note 4 (3,790,210) - 1,034,090 (2,756,120)
Total (7,759,778) — 2,208,771 (5,551,007)
Principal of note payable:

Note 1 10,683,273 - (1,357,586) 9,325,687

Note 2 5,781,242 - (711,585) 5,069,657

Note 3 4,118,688 — (498,254) 3,620,434

Note 4 17,068,232 — (1,921,757) 15,146,475
Total $ 37,651,435 — (4,489,182) 33,162,253

The schedule of payments of these notes payable as of June 30, 2013, is as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 5,026,926 1,894,419 6,921,345
2015 5,607,970 1,543,449 7,151,419
2016 6,235,471 1,152,927 7,388,398
2017 6,912,777 719,706 7,632,483
2018 7,640,404 240,506 7,880,910
2019 1,738,705 — 1,738,705
33,162,253 5,551,007 38,713,260
Less current portion (5,026,926) (1,894,419) (6,921,345)
Non current portion $§ 28,135,327 3,656,588 31,791,915
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(14) Obligation Under Capital Lease

In fiscal year 2000, the Corporation acquired under a capital lease agreement the facility
where a regional office is located. The agreement requires the Corporation to make total

payments of approximately $111.7 million over 30 years. The effective interest rate was
determined at 10.23%.

The activity of the obligation under capital lease for the year ended June 30, 2013, is as

follows:
Balance Balance
Description June 30, 2012 Advances Payments June 30, 2013

Future payment on assets

under capital lease $ 67,047,750 — (3,724,875) 63,322,875
Portion representing interest (36,451,606) — 3,100,510 (33,351,096)
Present value of minimum

lease payments $ 30,596,144 — (624,365) 29,971,779

The schedule of future minimum lease payments under this lease agreement, together with
the present value of such minimum lease payments for the year ended as of June 30, 2013, is

as follows:
Fiscal Year Present Value
Ending June 30, Capital Lease Interest Total

2014 $ 691,302 3,033,573 3,724,875
2015 765,416 2,959,459 3,724,875
2016 847,475 2,877,400 3,724,875
2017 938,332 2,786,543 3,724,875
2018 1,038,930 2,685,945 3,724,875
2019-2023 7,124,248 11,500,127 18,624,375
2024-2028 11,854,594 6,769,781 18,624,375
2029-2031 6,711,482 738,268 7,449,750
29,971,779 33,351,096 63,322,875

Less current portion (691,302) (3,033,573) (3,724,875)
Non current portion $ 29,280,477 30,317,523 59,598,000
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Transfers to Other Governmental Agencies

Transfers to other governmental agencies during the year ended June 30, 2013, are as
follows:

Description Amount

Industrial Commission of Puerto Rico $ 24,089,470
Department of Labor and Human Resources:

Occupational Safety and Health Office 12,602,750

Labor Standards Offices 6,410,250
Department of the Family-Vocational Rehabilitation Program 600,000
Budgetary Support Fund of 2012-2013 24,100,000
Total $ 67,802,470

The expenses incurred by the Industrial Commission of Puerto Rico are covered by the
Corporation under the provisions of Law No. 45. These expenses shall not exceed 4% of the
total of insurance premiums collected during the previous fiscal year.

The transfers to the Department of Labor and Human Resources, Occupational Safety and
Health and Labor Standards Offices, are in accordance with the applicable legislation as of
July 20, 1990, which authorizes the Corporation to transfer certain amounts as prescribed by
law to cover operational expenses of the above mentioned offices.

The transfer to the Department of the Family is made under the provisions of Law No. 243,
of July 23, 1974, which requires the Corporation to transfer to the Vocational Rehabilitation
Program an amount not to exceed $600,000 each year for the vocational rehabilitation of
injured workers. As of June 30, 2013, the amount due under this Program amounted to
$600,000.

Act No. 134 of July 2, 2012, required a one-time transfer of $24 million from the
Corporation to the “Budgetary Support Fund of 2012-2013” under the custody of the Office
of Management and Budget. Such transfer was made on September 7, 2012.
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Investment Derivative Instruments

The Corporation entered into derivative instruments not designated as hedge transactions to
the extent and in a manner consistent with the Corporation’s SIPGO, to establish an asset
class exposure or in order to affect a change in the overall allocation strategy of the
investment portfolio or to affect currency hedging for non-US dollar positions. These
investment derivative instruments consist of spot currency contracts, forward currency
contracts and future contracts. The financial exposure is managed through an independent
money manager in accordance with the Corporation’s investment policies. The Corporation
is exposed to foreign currency risk and market interest risk as a result of the changes in the
fair value of the derivative.

For the year ended June 30, 2013, the Corporation recorded within net increase in fair value
of investments in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, a net gain
on investment derivative instrument transactions amounting to approximately $47,900. At
June 30, 2013, there were no significant outstanding investment derivative instruments.

Employees’ Retirement Plan
Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Employees’ Retirement System of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and its
Instrumentalities (the Retirement System), created pursuant to Act No. 447 of May 15, 1951,
as amended, is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan sponsored by
and reported as a component unit of the Commonwealth. All regular employees of the
Corporation hired before January 1, 2000 and under 55 years of age at the date of
employment became members of the Retirement System as a condition of their employment.

No benefits are payable if the participant receives a refund of their accumulated
contributions.

The Retirement System provides retirement, death, and disability benefits pursuant to
legislation enacted by the Legislature. Retirement benefits depend upon age at retirement and
the number of years of creditable service. Benefits vest after 10 years of plan participation.
Disability benefits are available to members for occupational and non-occupational
disabilities. However, a member must have at least 10 years of service to receive non-
occupational disability benefits.
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Members who have attained 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of
creditable service, or members who have attained 58 years of age and have completed
10 years of creditable service, are entitled to an annual benefit payable monthly for life. The
amount of the annuity shall be 1.5% of the average compensation, as defined, multiplied by
the number of years of creditable service up to 20 years, plus 2% of the average
compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in excess
of 20 years. In no case will the annuity be less than $200 per month.

Participants who have completed 30 years of creditable service are entitled to receive the
Merit Annuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65% of the
average compensation, as defined; otherwise, they will receive 75% of the average
compensation, as defined.

Commonwealth Legislation requires employees to contribute 5.775% of the first $550 of
their monthly gross salary and 8.275% for the excess over $550 of monthly gross salary. The
Corporation was required by the same statute to contribute 9.275% of each participant’s
gross salary. Pursuant to Act No. 116 of July 16, 2011, the Corporation’s contribution was
increased to 10.275% for 2012, an additional 1% annually (11.75% for 2013) for each of the
next four years, and 1.25% annually for each of the five years thereafter, reaching an
aggregate contribution rate of 20.525% effective July 1, 2020.

Furthermore, on April 4, 2013, the Governor of Puerto Rico signed into law Act No. 3 of
2013, which represents a comprehensive reform of the Retirement System. Act No. 3
became effective on July 1, 2013 and amends the provisions of the different benefits
structures under the Retirement System, including, but not limited to, the following:

= For active participants of the contributory defined benefit programs under Act No.
447 of 1951 and Act No. 1 of 1990, all retirement benefits accrued through June 30,
2013 were frozen, and thereafter, all future benefits will accrue under the defined
contribution formula used for System 2000 participants, and will be paid at retirement
through a lifetime annuity.

. Increases the minimum pension for current retirees from $400 to $500 per month.

= The retirement age for Act No. 447 participants will be gradually increased from age
58 to age 61.

= The retirement age for current System 2000 participants is increased gradually from
age 60 to age 65.
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" Eliminates the “merit annuity” available to participants who joined the Retirement
System prior to April 1, 1990.

. The retirement age for new employees is increased to age 67, except for new state and
municipal police officers, firefighters, and custody officers, which will be age 58.

= The employee contribution rate will increase from 8.275% to 10%.

. For System 2000 participants, the retirement benefits will no longer be paid as a lump
sum distribution, instead, they will be paid through a lifetime annuity.

= Eliminates or reduces various retirement benefits previously granted by special laws,
including Christmas and summer bonuses. The Christmas bonus payable to current
retirees is reduced from $600 to $200 and is eliminated for future retirees. The
summer bonus will be eliminated.

. Disability benefits will be eliminated and substituted for a mandatory disability
insurance policy.

. Survivor benefits will be modified.
Defined Contribution Plan

The Legislature enacted Act No. 305 on September 24, 1999, which amended Act No. 447 to
establish, among other things, a defined contribution savings plan program (the Program) to
be administered by the Retirement System. All regular employees hired for the first time on
or after January 1, 2000, and former employees who participated in the defined benefit
pension plan, received a refund of their contributions, and were rehired on or after January 1,
2000, become members of the Program as a condition to their employment. In addition,
employees who at December 31, 1999 were participants of the defined benefit pension plan
had the option, up to March 31, 2000, to irrevocably transfer their prior contributions to the
defined benefit pension plan plus interest thereon to the Program.

Act No. 305 requires employees to contribute 8.275% of their monthly gross salary to the
Program. Employees may elect to increase their contribution up to 10% of their monthly
gross salary. Employee contributions are credited to individual accounts established under
the Program. Participants have three options to invest their contributions to the Program.
Investment income is credited to the participant’s account semiannually.
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The Corporation was required by Act No. 305 to contribute 9.275% of each participant’s
gross salary. The Retirement System will use these contributions to increase its asset level
and reduce the unfunded status of the defined benefit pension plan. Pursuant to Act No. 116
of July 16, 2011, the Corporation’s contribution was increased to 10.275% for 2012, an
additional 1% annually (11.75% for 2013) for each of the next four years, and 1.25%

annually for each of the five years thereafter, reaching an aggregate contribution rate of
20.525% effective July 1, 2020.

Upon retirement, the balance in each participant’s account will be used to purchase an
annuity contract, which will provide for a monthly benefit during the participant’s life and
50% of such benefit to the participant’s spouse in case of the participant’s death. Participants
with a balance of $10,000 or less at retirement will receive a lump-sum payment. In case of
death, the balance in each participant’s account will be paid in a lump sum to the
participant’s beneficiaries. Participants have the option of receiving a lump sum or
purchasing an annuity contract in case of permanent disability.

As discussed above, Act No. 3 of 2013 substantially amends the provisions of the previous
Acts governing the Retirement System benefit structures and programs, as described above.

Total employee contributions for the defined benefit pension plan and the defined
contribution plan during the year ended June 30, 2013 amounted to approximately
$14,229,000 and $2,702,000 respectively. The Corporation’s total contributions during the
years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 amounted to approximately $22,717,000,
$20,615,000, and $19,726,000, respectively. These amounts represented 100% of the
required contribution for the corresponding year. Individual information for each option is
not available since the allocation is performed by the Retirement System itself.

Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its stand-alone financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2013, a copy of which can be obtained from the
Employees’ Retirement System of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and its
instrumentalities. P.O. Box 42004, San Juan PR 00940-2004.
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Other Retirement Benefits

In addition to the Defined Benefit Plan and to the Defined Contribution Plan, the Corporation
provides the following retirement benefits:

Life insurance benefit — Life insurance coverage is provided to retirees for a period
of one year following retirement. It is covered through the Corporation’s health plan
(520,000 of life coverage for retiree only).

Christmas bonus benefit — Same eligibility as for the health benefits but retirement
must occur after March 31. The benefit is a one-time payment in the year of
retirement equal to 9.5% of salary up to a maximum of $3,325, except for unionized
lawyers who receive 8.5% of salary up to a maximum of $2,720. Employees retired
pursuant to various special incentive programs may receive up to five years of such
Christmas bonuses.

Retirement payment benefit — Eligibility required at least 15 years of service at the
Corporation and at least 30 years of credited service at the Retirement System and the
retiree must provide a letter of resignation at least 90 days prior to retirement.
Benefit is a lump sum of $8,100.

Retirement bonus benefit— Same eligibility as for the health benefits. Trust
employees receive 21% of final salary as a lump sum and all other employees receive
30% of final salary as a lump sum.

Disability benefit — To be eligible for disability benefits, the employee must be a
permanent full-time employee. A totally disabled employee who meets the disability
requirements of the Social Security Administration, the Worker Compensation or the
Retirement System receives a lump sum of $5,000. A totally disabled employee who
resigns and is not eligible for the disability requirements mentioned above, receives
a lump sum of 55% of the last year salary and up to $5,000 for rehabilitation costs
($4,800 for trust employees).

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost

The required contribution is based on projected pay—as—you-go financing requirements.
Benefits are actuarially calculated by an independent actuary.
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The Annual Pension Cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer (the ARC). The ARC is determined in accordance with plan provisions,
demographic participant data, actuarial assumptions, actuarial cost method, and other
actuarial methods prescribed by GASB Statement No. 27. While pre—funding is not required,
the ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to
exceed thirty years. The ARC will generally increase with benefit cost increases and
participant growth; in addition, gains/losses resulting from demographic and/or assumption
changes will also impact the ARC.

The following tables show the components of the Corporation’s annual pension cost for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the amount actually contributed to the Pension Program, the
change in the Corporation’s net obligation and the funded status of the Pension Program:

For the Year Ended

Net Pension Obligation Movement: June 30, 2013
Annual Required Contribution $ 4,528,775
Interest on the net pension obligation 390,487
Adjustments to the ARC (876,218)

Annual pension cost (expense) 4,043,044
Employer contribution (7,141,863)

Decrease in the net pension obligation (3,098,819)
Net pension obligation-beginning of year 10,249,002
Net pension obligation-end of year $ 7,150,183
Percentage of annual pension cost contributed 177%

Funded Status:

Actuarial valuation date July 1, 2012
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 29,634,360
Unfunded AAL $ 29,634,360
Funded ratio 0%
Annual covered payroll $ 189,416,028
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Pension Actuarial Valuation

The following table shows the most significant actuarial methods and assumptions used to
estimate the net pension obligation. As permitted by GASB Statement No. 27, the actuarial
valuation is performed every two years, but due to changes in the Retirement System caused
by Act No. 3 of 2013, the Corporation performed a full valuation at June 30, 2013.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Valuation year July 1, 2012

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit

Amortization method Level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis over 15 years.
Asset valuation method N/A

Discount rate 3.81%

Projected salary increase 4.00%

Mortality rate RP-2000 Generational Healthy Mortality Table for blended

healthy active employee/retiree
RP-2000 Combined Disability Mortality Table for disabled
participants

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future, and actuarially determined
amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the basic financial statements,
presents multiyear trend information about the actuarial value of program assets relative to
the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and on
the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and members to that point. The
projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the
potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing
between the employer and plan members in the future.

The actuarial calculations reflect a long—term perspective. Consistent with that perspective,

actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short—
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and actuarial value of assets.

61



18

STATE INSURANCE FUND

CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions
Program Description and Membership

The Corporation’s Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions Program (the OPEB
Program) provides postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) to all employees
who meet certain age and years of service requirements. These benefits were agreed by the
Corporation and employees in the collective bargain agreements and similar agreements. The
benefits are funded from the Corporation’s assets.

The Corporation provides the following OPEB:

. Health and other health related benefits: medical, prescription drugs, dental, and
vision benefits are provided together in a fully—insured health plan. Upon retirement,
an eligible employee receives two years of non—contributory healthcare benefits from
the Corporation and through its healthcare plan. The Corporation’s healthcare plan
covers medical, prescription drugs, vision, dental, and life insurance (see Note 17).
After the two years, the retiree can continue participation in the Corporation’s plan
(for lifetime) by contributing the difference between the plan premium and the
Corporation’s contribution of $35/month ($40/month for members of the “Unién de
Empleados de la Corporacion del Fondo del Seguro del Estado™) per retiree
(including dependents, if any). The $35/month and $40/month contributions end
when the retiree reaches 65 years of age and, thereafter, the retiree must contribute
the full plan premium. Some retirees who retired under special incentive programs
have the two-years extended (ranging from 5 to 7 years total). After the two—year
period (or the special retirement program period), the retiree can continue the spouse
or family coverage for the lifetime of the retiree.

At June 30, 2013, membership in the Corporation’s OPEB Program consisted of the
following:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 737
Current participating employees 3,314
Total membership 4,051
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Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost

The required contribution is based on projected pay-as—you—go financing requirements.
Benefits are actuarially calculated by an independent actuary.

The Annual OPEB Cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer (the ARC). The ARC is determined in accordance with plan provisions,
demographic participant data, actuarial assumptions, actuarial cost method, and other
actuarial methods prescribed by GASB Statement No. 45. While pre~funding is not required,
the ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to
exceed thirty years. The ARC will generally increase with benefit cost increases and
participant growth; in addition, gains/losses resulting from demographic and/or assumption
changes will also impact the ARC.

The following tables show the components of the Corporation’s annual OPEB cost for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the amount actually contributed to the OPEB Program, the
change in the Corporation’s net obligation and the funded status of the OPEB Program.

For the Year Ended
Net OPEB Obligation Movement: June 30, 2013
Annual Required Contribution 3,574,698
Interest on the net OPEB obligation 374,914
Adjustments to the ARC (535,602)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 3,414,010
Employer contribution (7,143,207)
Decrease in the net OPEB obligation (3,729,197)
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year 9,840,263
Net OPEB obligation at end of year 6,111,066
Percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed 209%
Funded Status:
Actuarial valuation date July 1, 2012
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 38,363,662
Unfunded AAL 38,363,662
Funded ratio 0%
Annual covered payroll 189,416,028
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OPEB Actuarial Valuation

The following table shows the most significant actuarial methods and assumptions used to
estimate the net OPEB obligation. As permitted by GASB Statement No. 45, the actuarial
valuation is performed every two years, but due to changes in the Retirement System caused
by Act No. 3 of 2013 (please refer to Note 17), the Corporation performed a full valuation at
June 30, 2013.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Valuation year July 1,2012

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit, level dollar

Amortization method Level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis over 30 years
Asset valuation method N/A

Discount rate 3.81%

Projected salary increase 4.00%

Mortality rate RP-2000 Generational Healthy Mortality Table for blended

healthy active employee/retiree
RP-2000 Combined Disability Mortality Table for disabled
participants
Health care cost trend
rate for medical and
prescription drugs 8.5% in fiscal year 2013, grading to 5% for fiscal year 2020

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future, and actuarially determined
amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the basic financial statements,
presents multiyear trend information about the actuarial value of program assets relative to
the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and on
the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and members to that point. The
projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the
potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing
between the employer and plan members in the future.
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The actuarial calculations reflect a long—term perspective. Consistent with that perspective,
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short—
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and actuarial value of assets.

Segregation of Fund

The Corporation is required to maintain an adequate accounting system and to segregate the
financial resources by funds, as defined by the Act, as amended. The provisions of the Act
establish the segregation of the funds be based on their purposes, as defined.

As of June 30, 2013, the Corporation was required to account for the Death and Total
Disability Fund (the DTDF) and for the Reserve for Catastrophic Fund (the RCF). The
DTDF recognizes the claims awarded to the workers (injured employees or its beneficiaries).
The Corporation maintains a separate account to record the inventory of claims adjudicated,
which is part of the liabilities for incurred but unpaid benefits and benefit adjustment
expenses, reflected in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2013, the
DTDF (adjudged cases) amounted to approximately $175,000,000 and the investments
portfolio serves to fund the obligation incurred.

The RCF is required by the Article 23 of the Act, which serves to provide funds in an event
of catastrophic situation. The provisions of Article 23 allow the Corporation to use the funds
in the RCF to reduce any deficit incurred by the Corporation. As of June 30, 2013, the RCF
amounted to approximately $14,150,000.
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Commitments
Operating Lease Agreements

The Corporation rents certain of its administrative offices and clinics under non—~cancelable
long—term operating lease agreements. Certain leases contain escalation clauses providing for
increased rental. Rent charged to operations in fiscal year 2013 amounted to approximately
$22.9 million. At June 30, 2013, the minimum annual future rentals under non—cancelable
leases, without considering renewal options, are approximately as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Amount

2014 $ 21,000,675

2015 15,420,120

2016 14,503,738

2017 12,804,326

2018 8,805,458
2019-2022 23,754,200

$ 96,288,517

See Note 15 for commitments with other governmental agencies.

Contingencies

The Corporation is included as defendant in various lawsuits from approximately 470 current
and former employees as a result of the Corporation’s decision to declare null and void
certain administrative personnel transactions which occurred in prior years. Plaintiffs’ claims
include damages and requests for reinstatements. On November 17, 2011, as part of one of
the cases being litigated, the State Court of Appeals ratified a previous ruling in favor of
plaintiffs on the subject related to nullification of personnel transactions. Management
believes, based on the opinion of legal counsel, that their actions were appropriate and these
adverse rulings were appealed to the State Supreme Court.
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Also, the Corporation is included as defendant or co~defendant in several other claims and
lawsuits pending final resolution. The Corporation had medical malpractice insurance
coverage through June 3, 1991, and for the period from December 31, 1996 to April 1, 2007.
During the periods from June 4, 1991 to December 30, 1996 and from April 2, 2007 to
present, the Corporation had no medical malpractice coverage. Management has recorded an
accrual of approximately $5.7 million to cover claims and lawsuits that may be assessed

against the Corporation, including malpractice cases not covered by the related policy as of
June 30, 2013.

In the opinion of management, any loss to be sustained as a result of an unfavorable outcome
for the above mentioned cases has been provided for in the reserve estimates accrued and
should not materially affect the Corporation’s financial statements.

Transactions with Governmental Entities

During the year ended June 30, 2013, insurance premiums earned by the Corporation from
the governmental sector are approximately as follows: $109.3 million from the
Commonwealth and its agencies and public corporations and $46.6 million from the
municipalities for a total amount of $155.9 million from the governmental sector. These
amounts represent approximately 22% of the total of premiums earned.

Interest bearing deposits with GDB amounted to $38,000,000 as of June 30, 2013. Interest
income earned on these deposits amounted to $87,320 for the year ended June 30, 2013.

The Corporation has invested $12,489,640 in the Commonwealth’s agency bonds as of
June 30, 2013. Investment with the PRGITF amounted to $1,039,392 as of June 30, 2013.

Dividend income earned on this investment amounted to $734 for the year ended June 30,
2013.

Accounts receivable from the Commonwealth’s agencies, municipalities and public
corporations amounted to approximately $28.9 million as of June 30, 2013. Medical and
administrative expenses paid to the Commonwealth’s agencies and public corporations
amounted to approximately $10.8 million for the year ended June 30, 2013.

For transfers to (from) other governmental agencies, see Note 15. For transactions with the
Retirement System, see Note 17.
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Subsequent Events

On December 19, 2013 the Corporation entered into a Note Purchase Agreement (the
Agreement) with Government Development Bank (GDB) whereby the Corporation agreed to
purchase from GDB Senior Guaranteed Notes (the Notes) in an aggregate amount of
$110,000,000 which are guaranteed by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico full faith, credit
and taxing power pursuant to Act No. 12 of the Legislature of Puerto Rico, approved on May
9, 1975, as amended (the Guaranty Act). The notes bear interest, payable monthly, in
arrears, on the first day of each month at 8% per annum, commencing on February 1, 2014.
The notes mature as follow:

Maturity Date

(December 1) Principal Amount
2017 $ 40,000,000
2018 30,000,000
2019 40,000,000

Act No. 43 of June 30, 2013, requires a transfer of $40 million from the Corporation to the
“Budgetary Support Fund of 2013-2014” under the custody of the Office of Management and
Budget, in two payments due on September 30, 2013 and March 31, 2014. The first transfer
of $20,000,000 was made by September 30, 2013.

The Corporation evaluated subsequent events up to February 20, 2014, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

*k ok ok okok
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STATE INSURANCE FUND
CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Ten - Year Claims Development Information

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Description 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

1) Projected gross earned premiums $ 691,080 722,512 722938 727,253 738,986 713,047 672,747 686,819 701,467 700,900
2) Unallocated expense NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
3) Estimated ultimate awards

at end of policy year 3 438 250 496,100 494,000 477,598 478,404 476,369 496,427 462,174 433,384 419,716
4) Awarded as of’

12 months $ 220,300 245,139 260,634 266,914 269,589 276,168 292,353 268,247 247,708 242,001

24 months 288,095 317,831 330,329 336,395 337,729 349,956 377,555 346,968 311,719

36 months 314,088 347,246 358,395 367,518 372,428 387,092 420,988 386,544

48 months 326,816 361,411 373,080 385,693 391,793 406,643 444 876

60 months 334,727 370,475 383,607 397,857 414375 419,203

72 months 340,113 378,103 391,306 406,423 412,750

84 months 344972 384,003 396,916 412,191

96 months 348,804 388,188 401,275

108 months 351,782 391,502

120 months 354,104
5) Re-estimated uitimate incurred:

12 months $ 438,250 496,100 494,000 477,598 478,404 476,369 496,427 462,174 433,384 419,716

24 months 400,900 441,800 449171 460,651 462,871 467,551 501,982 469,985 425,528

36 months 374,500 428,502 446,943 456,440 454,667 474 334 511,403 475,169

48 months 366,466 429,045 444,532 455,030 459,509 479,214 516,950

60 months 366,579 429,753 443,561 458,392 466,071 480,454

72 months 365,676 431,112 443 877 458,998 465,325

84 months 366,790 433,140 446,770 459,480

96 months 368,154 434,775 444 653

108 months 368,325 433,309

120 months 367,521

NA=Not available

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions for Pension Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2013
UAAL as a
Actuarial Unfunded/ Percentage of
Actuarial Accrued (Overfunded) Covered Covered
Value of Liability ALL (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Payroll
Actuarial Valuation Date Assets (a) (AAL) (b) (b)-(a) (a)/(b) 2)O [(b)-(a)/©]
July 1, 2012 — § 29,634,360 29,634,360 0% 189,416,028 15.6%
July 1, 2011 — 37,673,268 37,673,268 0% 201,141,746 18.7%
July 1, 2009 - 40,569,059 40,569,059 0% 236,285,677 17.2%
Schedule of Employer Contributions:
Annual Employer
Pension Cost  Contributions Percentage Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ended (APC) (¢)) Contributed Obligation
June 20, 2013 $ 4,043,044 7,141,863 176.6% 7,150,183
June 20, 2012 4,629,858 1,629,318 35.2% 10,249,002
June 20, 2011 5,389,289 6,025,098 111.8% 7,248,462
June 20, 2010 5,406,659 4,932,242 91.2% 7,844,271
June 20, 2009 6,587,551 2,621,547 39.8% 7,409,854

(1) Since there is no funding, these are estimated cash plan premiums and other payments less estimated participant contributions.
(2) Estimated plan participant payroll, includes only plan participants.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions for
Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions

Year Ended June 30, 2013
UAAL as a
Actuarial Unfunded/ Percentage of
Actuarial Accrued (Overfunded) Covered Covered
Value of Assets Liability ALL (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Payroll
Actuarial Valuation Date (a) (AAL) (b) (b)-(a) (a)/(b) 2)© [(b)-(a)/©]
July 1, 2012 - $ 38,363,662 38,363,662 0% 189,416,028 20.3%
July 1, 2011 - 57,800,111 57,800,111 0% 201,141,746 28.7%
July 1, 2009 - - 53,627,047 53,627,047 0% 236,285,677 22.7%
Schedule of Employer Contributions:
Annual Employer
Pension Cost  Contributions Percentage Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended (APC) (¢}) Contributed Obligation
June 20, 2013 $ 3,414,010 7,143,207 209.2% 6,111,066
June 20, 2012 5,161,392 4,873,734 94.4% 9,840,263
June 20, 2011 5,555,649 5,644,614 101.6% 9,552,605
June 20, 2010 5,212,977 3,824,400 73.4% 9,641,570
June 20, 2009 6,611,429 2,195,089 33.2% 8,252,993

(1) Since there is no funding, these are estimated cash plan premiums and other payments less estimated participant contributions.
(2) Estimated plan participant payroll, includes only plan participants.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors of
State Insurance Fund Corporation:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of net
position, revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows of State Insurance Fund
Corporation (the Corporation) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation's basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated February 20, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Corporation’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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We noted certain deficiencies in internal control that we reported to the Corporation’s management
in a separate letter dated February 20, 2014.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Administration’s Response to Findings

The Corporation’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in a separate letter
dated February 20, 2014. The Corporation’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

San Juan, Puerto Rico
February 20, 2014

Stamp number E89536 of the Puerto Rico Society
of CPA’s was affixed to the record copy of this report.
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